From : Charan Jeet Singh (c.jsingh1@gov.in)

To : rakeshkr.88@gov.in

Ce:

Subject : Fwd: Site Inspection Report of the proposal for Expansion of Jolly Grant Airport
Date : Jun 30 2022 11:43 AM

From: "Dr. Yogesh Gairola" <moef.ddn@gov.in>

To: "Charan Jeet Singh" <c.jsinghl@gov.in>

Sent: Thursday, June 30, 2022 10:04:39 AM

Subject: Site Inspection Report of the proposal for 'Expansion of Jolly Grant Airport'

Sir,

Please find enclosed herewith the Site Inspection Report of the proposal for diversion of 87.0815 ha of forest land for 'Expansion of
Jolly Grant Airport'.

This is for your information and further action please.
Warm regards,

O/o IRO Dehradun

Govt. of India

Ministry of Environment, Forest & Climate Change,
Integrated Regional Office,

25, Subhash Road, Dehradun-248001

Tel: 0135-2650809

Save Paper !l! Save Trees !ll Save Environment !l!
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GOVERNMENT OF INDIA

MINISTRY OF ENVIRONMENT, FOREST &
CLIMATE CHANGE

INTEGRATED REGIONAL OFFICE, DEHRADUN
25 SUBASH ROAD, DEHRADUN-248001
PHONE- 0135-2650809

FAX- 0135-2653010

Email- moef.ddn@gov.in
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25 Y TS, ABUGA—248001
SIHTY: 0135—2650809
HIRI—0135—2653010

39d- moef.ddn@gov.in

File No.:- RO-DDN/Tour/DIG(F)/8-2021/ LY 5G Dated: 29-06-2022

To,
Shri Charan Jeet Singh, Scientist ‘D’,
Ministry of Environment, Forest & Climate Change,
Government of India,
Indira Paryavaran Bhawan,
Jor Bagh Road, New Delhi-110003.

Sub.: Proposal involving diversion of 87.0815 hectare of forest land for
“Expansion of the Jolly Grant Airport” under Dehradun Forest Division and
district Dehradun, Uttarakhand (FP/UK/OTHERS/44884/2020)

Ref.: Letter No. 8-19/2020-FC dt. 24-01-2022 of Ministry of Environment, Forest
and Climate Change (FC Division), Government of India, New Delhi.

S1F,

With reference to your letter mentioned above on the subject cited above,
please find enclosed herewith the Site Inspection Report for your information and
further necessary action please.

Yours faithfully,

Encl: As above

(T.Q. Nautiyal)
DIGF (C)



SITE INSPECTION REPORT OF THE INTEGRATED REGIONAL OFFICE,
DEHRADUN IN RESPECT OF PROPOSAL INVOLVING DIVERSION OF 87.0815
HECTARE OF FOREST LAND FOR “EXPANSION OF THE JOLLY GRANT
AIRPORT” UNDER DEHRADUN FOREST DIVISION AND DISTRICT DEHRADUN,
UTTARAKHAND (FP/UK/OTHERS/44884/2020).

Name of the Inspecting Officer — Shri. T. C. Nautiyal, IFS, DIG(F), Integrated Regional
Office Dehradun, MoEF&CC. Gol.

As per the directions of MoEF&CC. New Delhi, the Site inspection of the above mentioned
proposal was carried out on 22.06.2022 with the officials of State Forest Department and
representatives of the User Agency. The following Officers were present during the inspection:

Official(s) from the State Forest Department Uttarakhand

Shri Nitishmani Tripathi DFO, Dehradun Forest Division
Shri N.L.Dobhal, Forest Range Officer

Shri. G. Singh Rawat, Dy. Forest Range Officer

Shri. Ahsan Ali, Surveyor

Ms. Yukta Mishra, SDM Doiwala

Shri. Md. Shadab Shams, Tehsildar

Ms. Manju Verma, Patwari, Jolly Grant

Shri. Manoj Mishra, Patwari, Athurwala
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Officials from User Agency:

1. Shri Rajeev Kumar Singh, Manager (Technical), Airport Authority of India.

2. Shri Rajeev Singh, Representative of Uttarakhand Civil Aviation Development
Authority, Government of Uttarakhand.

BACKGROUND NOTE ON THE PROPOSAL

Jolly Grant Airstrip came into existence somewhere in 1974 when a small airstrip over 11.425
hectare was constructed taking land from village Athurwala and Jolly Grant. The breakup of
land recorded as per SDM Rishikesh letter No. 1260/ST/2012 dt. 18/02/2012 in the name of
Airport Authority of India (AAI) and its source is as follows:

S. No. Name of Village/ Original Owner Land acquired for AAI (in hectares)
| Athurwala 19.856
2 Jolly Grant 30.830
3 Forest Land 70.000
- Land already available with AAI 11.425
Total 132.111

The relevant notifications for acquiring land of Athurwala village and Jolly Grant village are
enclosed. The total land recorded in the name of AAI is 132.111 hectare. Thus, beyond 70
hectares of forest land diverted in 2003, the AAI has 62.111 hectare of revenue land in its name.

The proposal for oxpansion of tho airstiip was taken up in 2002 when a proposal was submitted
to MoEF&CC for diversion of 70 hectares of forest land for the purpose. The MoEFCC granted
approval vide letter No. 8-110/2002-FC dated 17/02/2003. In 2003 the Google imagery of the

airport was as follows:

Page 1 of 13



Plate: 1- Existing air-strip on the revenue land and Forest land diverted (Blue) in 2003

It is clear from the image that the earlier existing airstrip was not part of the 70 hectares of
forest land diverted in 2003. Therefore, the KML file submitted by the State with the proposal
no. FP/UK/OTHERS/44884/2020 as previously submitted boundary of forest land does not
seem to be correct and the revised boundary of diverted forest land as marked in the photograph

below can be authenticated by the old sketch map which was submitted with the proposal in
2002.

Revised boundary of
Forest Land (70 ha)

Previously submitted boundary
of Forest Land (70 ha)
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Plate:2- The KML file (Cyan) submitted by the State along with the current proposal
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For the sake of clear understanding, the 70 hectare area diverted for airport in 2003 and the

87.0815 hectare area proposed to be diverted now are depicted in the photograph below on
2003 google earth imagery.
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Plate:3-Forest land diverted (Blue) and existing air-strip in 2003 along with 87
Jorest land (Red) demanded by the state now.

The area diverted in 2003 and the area proposed to be diverted now are also marked on 2021
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Plate:4-Forest land diverted (Blue) and existing air-strip in 2021 along with 87 ha additional
Jorest land (Red) demanded by the state
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The area was inspected along with the representatives of District Magistrate, Forest
Department, UCADA and Airport Authority of India was carried out on 22/06/2022 and a
comprehensive location along with all the KML files is reproduced as follows.
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Plate:5-Green dots represents the GPS locations of the different features collected from the
field during inspection on 22/06/2022.
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Plate:6- Map showing location of villages along with the KML files discussed above.
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Findings:

From the above maps and field visit, it is clear that the airstrip was located over a land
parcel of 11.425 hectare prior to 1980 and the forest land was used in 2003 for expansion of
the airstrip and construction of airport. Therefore, the KML file at Plate: 2 (in cyan colour) is
not correct. The KML file shown in red colour matches with the original sketch submitted by

the State in the year 2002 along with the diversion proposal of 70 hectares of forest land.

MONITORING OF COMPENSATORY AFFORESTATION AREAS

The Compensatory afforestation against diversion of 70 hectares of forest land was taken up in

Dehradun Forest Division over following compartments:

S.No. | CA site/ Compartment | Range Given Area Calculated
(in ha) Area (in ha)
1 Arcadia Asharodi 10 10.02
2 | Arcadia 3 Asharodi 10 10.01
3 Bhaniyawala-2b Barkot 10 9.94
4 | Jankhan-1 Barkot 10 10.02
5 Doonga 2 Lachchiwala 10 10.24
6 | Vanvah-1_(II) Lachchiwala 10 10.11
7 Vanvah-1_(II) Lachchiwala 10 10.11
8 Saharan_1b Malhan 10 10.01
9 Veerbhadra Rishikesh 10 10.01
10 | Lalpani-2 Rishikesh 10 10
11 | Lambi_Rau 39b Thano 10 10.06
12 | Song-3 Thano 10 10.06
13 | Song-4 Thano 10 10.22
14 | Vidhalana-01 Thano 10 10.07
Total 140 140.88
(A)  Following compensatory afforestation areas were inspected on 22-06-2022:

(1) Song 3 (10 hectare), Thano Range: The plantation area is on the left bank of song
river as per plantation journal 20,000 seedlings were planted in the year 2003 and the
main species planted were Kanju, Khair, Gutel, Jamun, Bahera, Bamboo, Sheesham,
etc. As per the records, the plantation success was 76% in 2005 and 22% in 2021. It
was however seen that the major planted species available on ground was Teak with a
few Bamboo and Sheesham trees here and there. A photograph of the plantation area is

as follows.
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It is evident from the field inspection that perhaps the CA plantation taken up against
diversion of 70 hectare of forest land for airport has failed and no records have been maintained
after year 2005 in the plantation journal. It is however possible that the state has replanted the
entire area with Teak subsequent to the earlier CA plantation carried out in 2003 under some
other scheme for which no records were available with the Range Officer who was available
during inspection.

(2) Lambirau 39b (10 hectare), Thano Range: The area was taken up in 2003-04 and
species viz. Amla, Kanju, Kanakchampa, Jamun, Tun, Bahera, Bamboo, Siras, Khair,
etc were planted. In all 20,000 saplings were planted. As per plantation journal, the
survival rate in December 2005 was 69%. thereafter no record has been maintained but
after instructions from this office the survival percentage recorded in December 2021
is 24%. Location of the plantation area is as follows.
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It is evident from the above field photographs and on ground inspection that the forest floor
was fully covered with lantana and a few trees could be seen standing here and there most of
which appeared to be naturally grown. There was no sign of successful plantation. When asked
about how they have arrived at 22% survival as recorded in the plantation journal in December
2021, no satisfactory reply could be obtained.

(3) Vidhalna 1 (10 hectare), Thano Range: The plantation was carried out in the year
2003-04 and species viz. Sheesham, Khair, Tun, Kanju, Sagwan, Amla, Siras, Bahera
and Kachnar were planted. In all 20,000 saplings were planted. A map showing the
area is given below.
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It is evident from above map that the KML file provided by the State Forest Department
was not found correct and the location of Vidhalna 1 was falling far outside the KML. It
was informed that the field visit points marked in the map are part of Vidhalna 1
compartment. A few photographs of the plantation area are reproduced as follows.

Barkot:Range
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[t was seen in the field that the trees growing in the plantation area are mainly Knju and
Jhingan but from the plantation journal it is seen that Jheengan was not planted at all and
other major species like Tun, Sagwan and Sheesham could not be seen whereas they were
planted in large numbers. As per the plantation journal, the survival percentage in 2005 was
66% and in December 2021 it was 23% which was not found to be correct by any standard
because there were sufticient number of trees standing to make density above 40% but the
predominant species planted during plantation were not seen. From the above, it is
concluded that the trees are growing on the CA plot shown by the Range Officer but those
may not be necessarily linked to CA plantation carried out in 2003-04. The records related
to plantation journal are not updated at all.

(B)  Following CA areas were inspected by the AIGF, IRO Dehradun on 28-06-2022:

(1) Vanvah I (10 hectare), Lachchiwala Range: The area was taken up in 2003-04 and
species viz. Khair, Sheesham, Tun, Jamun, Bahera, Siras, Bamboo, etc. were planted.
In all 20.000 saplings were planted. As per plantation journal, the survival rate in
December 2005 was 90% which came down to 33% in December 2021. Map showing
location of the plantation area is as follows.
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It was seen during the site inspection that the profuse regeneration of Dalbergia sissoo
(Sheesham) was there and the survival percentage of Dalbergia sissoo is satisfactory.
A field photograph showing the plantation area is as follows.

(2) Laalpani Comptt. No. 2 (10 Hectare), Rishikesh Range: The area was taken up in
2003-04 and species viz. Khair, Sheesham. Jamun, Bamboo, etc. were planted. In all
20,000 saplings were planted. It was observed that the KML map of the plantation area
submitted by the division did not match with the plantation area shown in the field. The
location of the KML provided and the actual plantation shown during inspection are
plotted in the map below.
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(3) Veerbhadra Comptt. No. 2 d (10 Hectare), Rishikesh Range: The area was taken up
in 2003-04 and species viz. Sheesham, Siras, Bahera, Amla, Jamun, Bamboo, Gutel,
etc. were planted. In all 20,000 saplings were planted. It was observed that the KML
map of the plantation area submitted by the division did not match with the plantation
area shown in the field. The location of the KML provided and the actual plantation
shown during inspection are plotted in the map below.
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Since, the KML submitted by the Dehradun Forest Division appear to be incorrect in
majority of the plots, it will be requested that correct KML may be submitted by the division
again so that there is no confusion in the identification of CA area during field inspection
in future. The division will also be requested to suitably count the survival percentage of
plants and recorded in the plantation journal for the inspection. In the meantime, since the
proposal is awaiting site inspection report we may submit the factual report to the ministry.

—

(T.C.Nautiyal)
Dy. Inspector General of Forest
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COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE ADDITIONAL PRINCIPAL
CHIEF CONSERVATOR OF FORESTS (CENTRAL), INTEGRATED REGIONAL
OFFICE, MEF&CC, DEHRADUN.

Expansion of Jolly Grant Airport is a strategically important proposal. As directed by
MoEF&CC, officer of this office has carried out the site inspection. The status of forest land
diverted in past has been clarified and no FC violation has been noticed. As regards
compensatory afforestation carried out against diversion of 70 hectares of forest land in 2003,
extensive field visits have been carried out by DIG(F)/AIG(F) and the detailed report is
submitted It is however seen that there is some mismatch in the KML file submitted by the
division and the CA site shown in the field. This office will follow up the inspection of CA
areas after getting corrected KML files. The proposal is however recommended for approval.

v-‘/
Ak
(Pankaj Agrawal)
Addl. PCCF
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